TOWN OF DUCK
TOWN COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING
February 5, 2025

The Town Council for the Town of Duck convened at the Paul F. Keller Meeting Hall at
1:00 p.m. on Wednesday, February 5, 2025.

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Don Kingston; Councilor Sandy Whitman;
Councilor Brenda Chasen; and Councilor Kevin Lingard.

COUNCIL MEMBERS ABSENT: Mayor Pro Tempore Monica Thibodeau.

OTHERS PRESENT: Director of Community Development Joseph Heard; Police Chief
Jeffrey Ackerman; Deputy Fire Chief Matthew Dudek; Town Attorney Robert Hobbs;
Public Information and Events Director Kristiana Nickens: Finance Administrator Lauren
Creech; and Town Clerk Lori Ackerman.

OTHERS ABSENT: Town Manager Drew Havens.

Mayor Kingston called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. He noted that Mayor Tempore
Monica Thibodeau and Town Manager Drew Havens were excused from the meeting.

Mayor Kingston asked Councilor Kevin Lingard to lead the Pledge of Allegiance. Mayor
Kingston led the moment of silence.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Mayor Kingston opened the floor for public comments. He noted that comments will be
limited to three minutes as there was a timer for the time limit. There being no one
wishing to speak, Mayor Kingston closed the time for public comments.

CONSENT AGENDA

Minutes from the December 4, 2024, Regular Meeting: Minutes from the January 8,
2025, Regular Meeting; Minutes from the January 15, 2025, Mid-Month Meeting;
Contract with VHB for Bidding and Construction Administration Services for
Phases 1 and 2 of the Town Park Shoreline Protection Project: and Budget
Amendment

Councilor Chasen moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.

Motion carried 4-0.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS



There were no Special Presentations at this time.

QUASI-JUDICTIAL PUBLIC HEARING

There were no Quasi-Judicial public hearings at this time.

LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS

There were no Legislative public hearings at this time.

OLD BUSINESS/ITEMS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

There was no Old Business to discuss.

NEW BUSINESS

Discussion/Consideration of the Process to Fill a Vacancy on the Planning Board

Mayor Kingston stated that there was an opening on the Planning Board due to the
unexpected passing of Joseph Blakaitis as well as an opening on the Board of Adjustment
due to the resignation of Edward Sadler because he moved out of Duck. He stated that
staff will need to set up receiving applications for the two vacancies so they can be
considered at Council’s March 5, 2025 meeting. He suggested that a call be put out
asking for applications that would need to be received by Wednesday, February 26, 2025
and then ask the applicants to make a brief presentation as to who they are when they
come forward to apply for the vacancies.

Councilor Chasen asked if the current applications that were on file would be taken into
account from the last time the Planning Board vacancy was advertised. Mayor Kingston
thought they could resubmit the same application. Town Clerk Lori Ackerman was
recognized to speak. Town Clerk Ackerman explained that applications were kept on file
for two years and the last time applications were received for the Planning Board vacancy
was in 2021, adding that those that had applied and were interested again would need to
resubmit an application.

Councilor Lingard pointed out that an applicant could apply for both vacancies. Mayor
Kingston agreed, adding that they could apply for both at the same time with the same
application.

Town Attorney Robert Hobbs was recognized to speak. Town Attorney Hobbs reminded
Council that the Town Code has a new requirement for advertising the vacancy which is
set out in Section 31.30. He added that it should be done before Council considers any
applications. Mayor Kingston clarified that if Council made a decision today, advertised
it and asked for applications to be received by February 26, 2025, it would be fine. Town
Attorney Hobbs stated that the language was as follows: “...shall advertise the
vacancy...” but did not give a timeframe, adding that the language further read as



follows: “...all complete applications received would be provided to the Council prior to
the meeting when the Council was scheduled to fill the vacancy or vacancies...”

It was consensus to advertise the vacancies, receive applications by February 26, 2025
and include them in the March 5, 2025 Council packets.

Town Clerk Ackerman asked Mayor Kingston if he and Council wished to discuss the
other two terms that were expiring on the Planning Board at this meeting. Mayor
Kingston thought they should be discussed closer to their expiration in May, 2025, He
pointed out that there were a couple of positions that were expiring on May 1, 2025.

Town Attorney Hobbs asked if Council would be considering the vacancies at their
March meeting. Mayor Kingston stated that they were. Town Attorney Hobbs asked if
all five Council members would be present. Mayor Kingston stated that four of the five
would be present, adding that Councilor Lingard will be absent.

Councilor Lingard thought there was some confusion last time about attending the
Council meeting and giving a presentation. He stated that it needed to be clear in the
advertising that Council expected the applicants to be present at the meeting to give a
presentation. He pointed out that one person had told him that they were not aware of
that piece last time and did not get considered for the vacancy. He reiterated that it should
be made clear that the applicants will be expected to attend the Council meeting.

Councilor Chasen clarified that the part about the applicants giving a presentation was
more of a question-and-answer period with them presenting their qualifications.
Councilor Lingard thought Council allotted three minutes for the applicants to give their
presentation. Mayor Kingston thought it was more of an introduction.

ITEMS REFERRED TO AND PRESENTATIONS FROM THE TOWN
ATTORNEY

Town Attorney Hobbs stated he had nothing to report.

ITEMS REFERRED TO AND PRESENTATIONS FROM THE TOWN
MANAGER

Departmental Updates

Public Information and Events Director Kristiana Nickens was recognized to speak.
Director Nickens gave a brief overview of activities to Council and the audience.

Police Chief Jeffrey Ackerman was recognized to speak. Police Chief Ackerman gave a
brief overview of the past month’s police activities to Council and the audience.



Director of Community Development Joseph Heard was recognized to speak. Director
Heard gave an overview of the past month’s permit activities to Council and the
audience.

Deputy Fire Chief Matthew Dudek was recognized to speak. Deputy Fire Chief Dudek
gave a brief overview of the past month’s fire activities to Council and the audience.

December F'Y 2025 Financial Presentation

Finance Administrator Lauren Creech was recognized to speak. Administrator Creech
gave a short presentation on the December Fiscal Year 2025 financials to Council and the
audience.

MAYOR’S AGENDA

Mayor Kingston stated that the mayors/chairmen meeting will be on February 18, 2025
hosted by Dare County. He stated that he was looking forward to the upcoming Retreat
on February 19-20, 2025 as well as the Celebration of Community on February 21, 2025.

COUNCIL MEMBER’S AGENDA

Councilor Lingard stated that he attended his first Government Education Access
Committee meeting.

Councilor Whitman reminded the audience about the beach grass planting on Friday,
February 7, 2025 at 1:00 p.m.

Councilor Chasen stated that on January 16, 2025 she was sworn in to the Dare County
Tourism Board and was appointed to their personnel committee as well as the grants and
local public relations committees. She stated that the next meeting will be on February
27, 2025. She stated that on January 16, 2025 she attended the Bias Speaker Series to
learn more on how to complete research for the Quter Banks History Center, adding that
she could not wait for it to reopen in March. She stated that she attended the service and
celebration of life for Joseph Blakaitis. She thanked him and his family for all of the
service they have given over the years to the Town of Duck and the greater Dare County
area. She stated that she and Councilor Whitman attended the design update meeting
with Dills Architects on February 3, 2025 to work on the Public Safety building. She
added that more information would be forthcoming with regard to that at the upcoming
Retreat.

OTHER BUSINESS

Additional Public Comments

Mayor Kingston opened the floor for public comments.



Miriam Rollin of 149 Plover Drive was recognized to speak. Ms. Rollin stated that the
actions of the Federal governments can sometimes have an impact locally in Duck and
the Outer Banks. She stated that she wanted to note that there was talk of some
immigration raids for rounding up people who may not have legal status in the United
States. She stated that she wanted to note that there were organizations that have
compiled “Know Your Rights” documents for the public to be aware of what rights
people may have, whether they were neighbors, friends or colleagues that work with
them. She thought Council may want to look at the National Immigrant Justice Center
and the National Immigration Law Center which has helpful information for people about
what people have to do and don’t have to do. She thought it would be helpful to
everyone as citizens who care about their neighbors, workers, and colleagues.

There being no one else wishing to comment, Mayor Kingston closed the time for public
comments.

Mayor Kingston noted that the next meeting would be the Retreat on Wednesday and
Thursday, February 19 and 20, 2025 at 9:00 a.m.

ADJOURNMENT

Councilor Whitman moved to adjourn the meeting.
Motion carried 4-0.

The time was 1:37 p.m.

Approved: ?“;\%b g Ei )?/g

ey
Donua\ﬁéston, Ma}’for LK_/

= ?\Qﬂ&ﬁﬂ’\

[ﬁﬁ?\ Ackermarb{, Town Clerk

M B/al’e
D A YN

NORTIL| CAROLINA



